for the Westeri |

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA. -

-Vs- ‘! R l/{ @/R ‘97 { S
' Violations:
JEFFERY GRAHAM a/ k/ a Twenty Title 21, United States Code,

(Counts 1,13,29,36,40) _ ... . - Sections 841(a)(1), 846, and 860(a)
VL : ' (40?Counts and Forfemue Aﬂeoatlon)

“(Counts I,15

SHAVON ROYAL a/ k/ a Sir
(Counts 1 5, 27)




COUNT 1
(Conspnracy)

The Grand J“YY Charges That' Al

Between at least as, eaﬂyv‘aslm or about eaﬂy 2014 the exdct. date belng ' ‘nknown .

and on or about the date of the retum of th1s Ind1ctment m the Western Dlstrlct of New

knowingly, willfully and unlawfully cornbine, conspire and dgfe‘e* together and Wlth others,

Jknown and unknown, to commit the following offenseé, that is:
' (a)  to possess with intent to distribute, and to distribute, 280 gramsor more of a
mixture and substance contammg eocaine base a Schedule II controlled substance n

wolatlon of T1t1e 21 Umted States Code Sections 841(21)(1) and 841 (b)(l)(A) and




‘Lof,i;the ‘rea‘l @rbp'efty’ Coﬁlpfisihg" housing. facilities

thorlty, that s, the Lackawanna 'un‘:'ic:lpai HousmOr

Authority, to possess with mtent to dlstrlbute and to dlsmbute 280 0rams or more of af' ’
m1xtu1e and substance contammg cocame base a Schedule I contro]led substance i
' v101at10n of Tltle 71 Umted States"' 'Code Sectlons 841(&)(1) and 860(&)

A]l in vmlaﬁum of Tnﬂe 21 Umted Sta.tes Code, Sectmn 846

COUNT 2 2

(P ossession with- Im:ent to Dlsmbmfe and ]Dlstrnbnm@n of

- possess with-intent to- distribtite, and distribute, cocdine B‘as'e;,;‘ a Schedule 1T con

. substance; i violationof Title 21, United States Codeg.fSéCﬁOm841,(&1)’;(1?).: -

All in vielation of Title 21, United States Code, Se ction 860(a).




_ COUNT3 e

" (Possession with Intent tfo. Dlsmbute and Dlstrlbutlon of ..
Cocame Ba.se Wlthm 1 000 Feet of Pubhc Housmg Property)

| The Grand Jury Further Cha.rges Tha:t
| On or about May 22 2014 111 the Western D1str1ct of NeW York on and Wlthm
1,000 feet of the real property compnsmg the Gates Housmg Pro;ects a housmg fac111ty
owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a pubhc housmg authorlty, the
defendant, CHARLES ROSE a/k/a Chuek, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully .
possess with mtent to distribute, and dlstnbute cocaine- base a Schedule II controlled
substance, in violation of Title 21, ‘United States Code Secnon 841(&)(1)

Allin violation of Title 21, United States Code,:Sectmm 860(&).

COUNT 4.
' (Possession with Intent ’écd‘ Di’stﬁbute and Distribution of C(‘)ca?ine:Bets’e)'
| The Graud Jury Further Ghefrges- That: |
= On or about May 27, 2014, in the Western District of New York, the deferi%ant
WALDEMAR PABON, dld knowmoly, intentionally and unlawfully pOSsess with mtént to
distribute, and distribute; cocaine base, a Schedule II controﬂed substance. '

AIl in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and

841 (b)(l)((.:),




(Possess;wn Wlth Inteot to )1stnbute and Dis‘cnbuﬂon of Cocame Base):
| | The Grand Jwry Furthe;r Chaxges That B
U On or about May 30 2014 m the Westem Dlstrlct of NeW York the defendant
SHAVON ROYAL a/ k/ a Sﬂ: dld knowmgly, mtentlonally and unlawfully possess w1th |
mtent to dlst_rlbute and dlstnbute cocaine base a Schedule II controlled substance | |

Aﬂ m vmlanon of Tlﬂe 21, Umted States Code, Sections 041(a)(1) and

| B41(b)(1)(C).

CQUNT 6

(Possessmm with Intem to ]Dlstrﬂ)me and DISU‘ﬂ)HﬂOH of Coca:me B*ase)

' ‘m;her Chmrges That

On or about May 30, 2014, m ' Westem D1stnct of New York the defendant

WAL

DEMAR PABON, di ' mtenttonally and unlawﬁllly possess w1th mtent to-

dis-tﬁbﬂte,t and distribute:. cocaine base, ‘a Schedule: Tl controlled substanice. -

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1); and

- RBO).




.,‘.C-'?OU'NT 7.

(Possessmn w1ﬂ1 Intent to Distribute and Distribution.of -
Cocaine Base W1th1n 1 ODO Feet of Pubhc Housmg Propeﬁy)

The Grand Jury Further Charges T hat

On:or about June 3, 2014 in the Western Dlstrlct of New York on and Wlth]ﬁ 1 ,000
feet of the real property compnsmg the Gates Housmg Pro;ects a housmg facﬂlty owned by-
the Lackawanna Mummpal Housmg Authorlty, a pubhc housing authonty, the defendant
REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay, dld knowmgly, mtenhona]ly and unlawfu]ly possess with
intent to distribute, and distribute, ‘cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, n -
violation of Title 21, ﬁﬁited States Code, Sectioﬁ 841(a)(1).

All in violation of Title 21, United States.Code, Section 860(a). .

COUNT 8

(Possessxon Wlﬂl Intent to Distribute and Dlstnbutlon of
oot Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housmg Propeny)

The Grand Jury Further Charges That: :

- On or about June 9, 2014 in the Western District of New. York, on and within 1 ODO
feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Pro;ects a housing facility owned by
the Lackawanna Municip‘al Housing Authority, a public housing authority, the defen(}:ftant,
DERRICK PATTERSON a/k/a ‘Dinky a/k/a Post, did knowingly, intentionally and
unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II

controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1)-

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).




(Possessmn w1th Intem: to: Dlstnbute and )1st1but10n of Cocajne Base)

The Grrand Jury Fmrﬂle:rc Charves T hat

On or about June 10 2014 m the Western Dlstuct of New York, the defendant "

» LAR.N THOIVE’SON d1d k:novvmgly, mtennonally and unlawfully possess w1th mtent to
'dlstrlbute and d1st11bute cocaine base a Schedule II contco]led substance o

AH m vmlamon of Tntle 21 Umted Sta.tes Code, Secﬁons 841(&)(1) and

841@9)(1)(@

,,,,,

CBALMBYINC).




CUNT 11

(Possessmn with Tntent to Distribute and Distribution of .
Cocaine Base Wlthm 1 OOO Feet of Pubhc Housmg Property)

The Grand J ury F‘urther Charges T ha’[
On or about June 18, 2014 in the Westem Dlstrlct of New York on and Wlthm
.1 ,000 feet of the real property compnsmg the Gates Housmg Pro;ects a housmg facﬂlty
owned by the Lackawanna Mun1c1pa1 Housmg A_uthonty, a pubhc housmg authonty, the
| defendant, LARON THOMPSON, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess
with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in
violation of Title 21, Unite‘d'States Code, _S-e‘(.‘:ﬁon‘ 841(a)(1).

All in violation of Title 2‘1, United: States Code, Section 860(&).’

COUNT 12

(Possession with Intent to' Dlsmbute and Dlstnbutlon of
' Cocaine Base Wlthm 1 000 Feet of Publi¢c Housing Property). -

The Gxand-:fux‘y;ﬂFurther Charges That:

Onor about June 25, 2014, :in the Western District of New York, on' and Wlthm
1,000 feet of the real property'b cofnpfising the Gates Housing “Proj_lects, a hdusing., facmty
owned by' the Lackawanna Municipal Hqusing Authority, a public housing authoritgé, the
defendant, JAMES SULLIVAN, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawﬁllly possess with
intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule I controlled substance, in

violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1).

All ifi violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).




‘ -CIOUNT 1-3

(Possesston Wrth lntent 1o Dlstnbute and Dlst:ﬂbutmn of
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Publ_c Housing Property)

The Grand quyth;tﬂzzem Charges That:
On or about July 1, 2014, in the Wester.h ,Di‘strict of New York, on ancl»within 1,000
- feet of the real prop‘ertj cot:tlprising‘» the Gates. l—Iousing Projects, a housing facility. owﬁed 'by" |
the Lackawanma Municipal .Housing Authority, a public housing autherity, the defendant,
JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did lmowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess
- with intent to distribute, and distribute, coqaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in
violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1). - |

All'in violation: Of Title 21, Umtedl Qtates Coele, Section 860(a).

. COUNT14

(Possessmn Wlth Intent t@ Itstmbttte a.:nd Dtstmbm‘:mm of Coecaine Base)

B The G‘rmnd I ttty Further Charges Tltat
' ‘On or about July 3 2014— n the Westem Dtsutct of New York, the defendant
' ‘THZEODORE H]LNES a/k/a Teddy, dld knowmcly, mtenttonally and unlawfully p@ssess
» W1th intent to. dtstrtbute and dtstnbute cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance

All in violation of T]:tle 21, Umted States Code, Sections 841(;1)(1) ancl

841(b)(1)(C).




CO-’.UNT 15

(Possession: with: Intent to Dlstnbute and Dlstnbutlon of
Cocain¢ Base: W1"= iin 1,000 Feét of Public Housing. Property)

The Grand Jary Further:Charges Tha:t; :
" On' or about July 9, 2014, in the Western District of New Yorky on and within 1,000
feet of the real property compnsmg the Gates Housmg Projects, a housmg facility owned by
the Tackawanna Murnicipal Housing Authority, a-public’ housmg authonty, the defendant,
REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully possess with '
intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in -
violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1).

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a). -

COUNT 16

(Possessmn with: Intent to Distribute and Dlstnbutlon of
Cocaine Base Wlﬂl‘m. 1, 000 Feet of Pubhc Housmg Property)

| The Grand ¥ ury Further Charges That ;
On or about July 17 2014 n the Westem Dlsmct of New York on and W1thm 1 OOO
‘feet ‘of the real property comprlsmg the Baker Homes Housm‘j PrOJects a housmg facﬂlty :
owned by the Lackawanna Mummpal Housmg Authorlty, a pubhc housmg authonty, the
defendant, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did k:nowmgly, intentionally and unlawfully
possess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled
substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 84.1 (a)(1).

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 8560(3.)‘.

"~ 10



: -(?P‘O’SS‘C‘S'SiOIE”WZ_hh'-Xlltent‘t.@' D‘i;suiiﬂ'qpteﬁ’ aucl Distribujﬁon,of .
- Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet'of Public Housing Property)

The Grand Jury Further Charges Thiat:
On or about July 18, 2014, in the Western District of NeW rYbrk, '-on and within 1,000
"~féé.t of the teal'property” c,omprising. the Baker Homes Housing Projects, a ‘housing facility
“owﬁéd"lﬁy‘theihackaweﬂnna Municipal- Housing Authority, '-a‘u public housing authority,- the
defendant, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., did ‘lcnowingly,v inténtionallﬁr and unlawfully
possessswith intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled
substance; in violation of Title 21; United States C.O‘de-,"Sect‘idﬁn?é-‘lli«l(a)(‘l);

All i violation of Title 21, Uniited States Code, Section 860(a). - -

|+ (Possession with Tte istribute and Distribution. of
" Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housiiig Property)
Thef(}randifgfuwaufﬂ:&er Charges That: -

| On or about Atigust 14, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and Wlthm

11,000 feet of the real property comiprising the Gates Housing. Projects,. a housing feiéility»

- owred by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority,. a public housing aumorité,'the
defendant, CHARLES ROSE a/k/a Chuck, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully

"pe)sse'ss with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule I controlled
substance, in violation of Title ‘2.'1',"United~8'tates~ Code, Section 841(a)(1). -

ATl in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).

o 11




' coUNT 19

(Possessmn with Intent to Dlsmbute and- Dlstnbutmn of
Cocaine Base Within 1 000 Feet of Pu’bhc Housmg Property)

The Grand I ury Fm:ther :Chaxges: That:

" On or about August 15, 2014, in the Western District ofNew York, on and within -

17,000 feet of the real ‘property comprising the- Gates Housing. Projects; a-housing facility

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal.Housing; Authority, a public housing authorify, the

defendant, REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay, did knowingly, mtentiona]ly and unlawfully

* ‘possess with mtent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled

substance, in violation of Title 21; United States Code Secnon 841(a)(1)

: Aﬂm violation of Title 2‘1, ‘United:States:.Gode-,’ Section 860(a).

COUNT 20

(Possessmn Wlth Intent to D1str1b‘mf:e and Dlstxﬂmﬁon of
Cocame Base Within 1, 000 Feet of Public Housiug Property)

“The Grand Jury FurtherChzu ges That:

- On or. about-August 18, 2014, in the Western District of New York, on and W1thm

1,000 fé'e{ of the real property c‘o‘mpﬁs.i'ng: the Baker Homes Housing Projects; a ho:ifilfsing: :

facility owned By the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public: hog;sing
authority, tﬁe defendant, EDWARD GREEN, did knowingly, intentionally and unlawfully
poésess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled
s.ubstancé‘-, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841 @a)(‘l)-‘. *

All in violation of Title 21, Uﬁitedh StatesCode,:Section 860(a)-

12




C.UNT 21

(Possesswn Wlﬂl Imtent to. )1strﬂmte and D1str1but1011 ofa@gagme Base)
T he Grand Ju:ry erther Charges T hat

On or about August 19 2014 n the Westem Dlstrlct of New York, the defendant

TEIEOIORE S a/ k/ a Teddy, d1d knowmcly, mtentlonally and unlawﬁllly possess

Wlth mtent to d1str1bute and dlstrlbute cocaine base a Schedule II controlled substance

ny

AH in vmlatmn of Tlﬂe 21 Umted States Code, Sectmns 841(&)(1) and

341(6)(1)(C).

C.UNT 22

o

(Possessmn Wlth Bﬂem to Dlsmbute zmd Dlsmbutnon of Cccaume Base)

EDW B G]RE N d1d knowmgly, mtentlonally and unlawfully possess Wlﬂ’l mtent to

d1smbute and d1smbute cocame base & Schedule T contro]led substance. .

All m lea;tlon of Tlﬂe 21 Umted States Code, Secmons 841(a.)(1)__.:___'and |

,, 84»1@)(1)(0

<13



COUNT 23

(Possessmn w1th Intent to Distiibute and- D1stmbu*t10n of -
Cocaine Base Wlthm 1 OOO Feet of Pubhc Housmg Property)

The Gra.nd Jury Further Charges That
On or about August 20, 2014, in the Westem Dlstrlct of NeW York on and Wlﬂ'llIl :
1 000 feet of the real property comp11smg the Gates Housmg PIOJects a housmg facﬂ1ty

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authonty, a public housmg authonty, the

defendant, CRAIG ELDRIDGE, did knowingly, intent‘iona]ly and unlawfully possess with

intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II controlled substance, in

 violation of Fitle 21, United States Code Sect1on 841(&)(1)

All in vwlaﬁon of Title 21 Umted States Cmie Sectm:u 860(3)

COUNT 24
(Possesswn Wlﬂl Intent to ]D1sm”bute a.nd Dlsmbutmn of Coca.me Base)
The Gland Jury Further Charges That

On or about August 22,2014, at appronlmately 11 30 a.m., in the Westem Dlstuct of

'New York the defendant THEODORE HINES a/k/ a Teddy, d1d knowmgly,

) mtentlonally and unlawfully possess with intent to-distribute, and distribute, cocaine base a

Schedule II controlled substance.
"All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and

84L(b)(1)(C).

14



IS T
gy

CRA 1G ELD RIT

d1str1bute and dlstrtbute cocaine base a Schedule II controlled substance

On or about August 22 2() 14 at: applox.tmately 12 40 p m., in the Westem Dlstuct

of New York the defendant THEODOR_E HZD\TES a/ k/ a. Teddy, chd lmowmgly,

FAR

mtentmnally and unlawfully possess Wlth mtent to dlsmbute and dlstrlbute cocainie base a

Schedule II contr olled substance

AH in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and

841i(t>)(1)(C),
COUNT26
(Possession with Intent t6 Distrib te-and Distribition of Cocaine Base).

AJl in vxola’uon of T1ﬂe 21 Umted States Code, Sectxons 841(&), and

841(b)(1)(C)-

15



 COUNT27

(Possessmn with: Intent to Distribute and Distribution of -
Cocaine Base W1th1n 1, OOO Fee’c of Publte Hou.smg Property)

The Grand Jury Further Charges That

On or about August 25 2014 in the Westem Dlstnct of New York, on and within

1, OOO feet of the real property compnsmg the Gates Housmg Pro;ects a housmg fac1l1ty
owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housmg Authonty, a pubhc housmg authonty, the
defen‘dant,‘ SHAV:O‘N. ROYAL a/ k/a ‘S1r, did lo'lowmgly, intentionally and uulawfully
possess with intent to dlstribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedulell controlled
| substance, 1n violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 84l(a)(l). o

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).

COUNT 28
(Possessmn Wlﬂl lutent to Distribute aud Distribution of Cocaine Base)
The Grrand J ury Further Charges That°

On or about August 26 2014— in the Westem DlSlIlCt of New Yorlc the defendant

dlstnbute and’ dlstnbute cocaine base a Schedule I controlled substauce o
All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 8"41(;1')(1)"' -

841(b)(1)(C).

2rLL HENDR]X d1d lcnowmoly, mtentlonally and unlawfully possess W1th mtent to -

16



COUNT 29 |

(Possessmn with. Intent to Dlstnbm:e and Dlsmbutlon of .-
Coca.me Base Wlthm 1 000 Feet of Puch Housmg Propexty)

""he rand J my Fuxthel Charges That
On or about August 27 2014 m the Westem Dlsmct of New Y01k on and Wlthm
‘1 OOO feet of the real property compnsmg the Gates Housmg Pro;ects a housmg facﬂlty
| owned by the. Lackawanna Mun1c1pa1 Housmg Authont?, é pubhc housmg authonty, the
defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did- lcnowmgly, mtentlonaﬂy and
unlawfully‘:apossess with intent to distribute, and distribute, cocaine base, a Schedule II
controlled substance, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841 (a}(‘l)..

Allin violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).

COUNTBO “ - -

(Possessmn Wmth Im:ent to D Hﬂ)ute ;md Dlstribm:mn of Cocame Base)

The Gmnd Jury Furtber Chmges Thm :

,,,,,

B On or about August 29 20 14 n the Western DlStl‘lCt of NeW YOlk the defendant
TARREL]L HENDR]X dld hlowmaly, 1ntent1ona]ly and unlawfully possess w1th 111tent to

| d1str1bute and dlstnbute cocaine base, a Schedule II contro]led substance ;
All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(&)('1)5:?&11&

41 (LY(IXC).

17




defendants FAMES SULLIVAN and c:,:

mtent to dlstnbute and dlstrlbute cocame base a Schedule 11 contro]led substance

(Possessmn W1th Intent to D1stnbute and )1stnbut10n of Cocame Base) .
The G—rand J ury Further Charges That
: On or about September 15 2014 1n the Western Dlstnct of NeW Yo:rk the

*;,;SMA ROYSTER dld knowmgly, |

mtentlonally and unlawfu]ly possess Wlﬂ’l mtent to dlstrlbute and dlstnbute cocaine base a

Schedule IT controlled substance

(Al in violation of Tltle 21, Umted States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and

841(19)(1)(C)

COUNT 32
(Possessmn with Intent to Dlstnbute and. Dnstnbutton of Cocaine Base).

The Grand Ju;ry Further Charges That

On or- about September 16 2014 m the Westem ]Dtstrlct of New York the

defendant JAMZES SULLIVAN d1d 1cnow1ng1y, mtentlonally and unlawfu]ly possess thh

| All in v1olat10n of Tlﬂe ZI Umted States Code, Sectlons 841(a)(

841(b)(1)(C).

18



3

C?OUNT 33 -

(Possessmm with Intent to. Distribute and Dlsmbunon of
Cocaine Base Wlﬂml 1,000 ]Feet of Publie Housmg Property)

The Grand Jury Fmrther Chalrges That: |

On or 'ébout September 24, 201'4; n the Western District of New York, on and
within 1,000 feet O'fv' therealpropertycompnsmg theGates :Hqusiﬁg Piojects, a hOusiﬁg. ‘
facility owned by the Lackawanpa Municipal Housing Authority, a. public housing
-authority, - the defendant, DERJRICK PATTERSON a/k/a Dinky a/k/a Post, did |
knqwmgly,‘mtentionaﬂy and unlawfu]ly possess with intent to distribute, and distribute,
.icocaine: base, a- Schedule.IL controlled subétance,. in violation of Title 21, United States
.Code, sigcﬁ‘an‘ 84“'11(1@(1,)»; - “

. All inviolation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).. .

COUNT 34

(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distribution of
. Cocaine Base Within 1, 000 Feet of Public Housing Property)

The Grand me F urther Cnarges That: -

On or about September 26 2014. in the Westem Dlstnct of New York,- oﬁ and
within' 1,000 feet of the real property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a hmé;smg
facility owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authority, a public housing

“authority, the defendant, WALDEMAR: PABON, did knowingly, intentionally and

unlawfully possess with intent. to. distribute, and distribute, cocaine base,.a Schedule II




B L :controlled substance n Vlolanon of Tltle 21 Umted States Code Sectlon 841(a)(1).

All in v101at1011 of Tlde 21 Umted States Code, Sectlon 860(&)
COUNT 35

(Possession with Intent to Distﬂbute C o‘cahie Base
Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property)

The Grand Jury Further Charges That:
Onﬂ»or about October 10, 2014, in the Western District of NeW York, on and within
1,000 feet of the real property ‘comprising the. Gates Housing Projects, a -housing facility .
owned by the Lackawanna Municipal: Hoéusing Authority, a public housing authority, the
d’efenéeht,’LA-RON THOMI’SON, did knowingly, intentionally a‘ind»'mﬂawfumr peés’es-s-
Wlthmtent to (iisfﬁfﬁutejcb'came bziee, a Schiedule TI controlled substance, in violation of
| Tlﬂe 21, Unitesd States Code, Section 841(a)(1). |

" All in violation: of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).

COUNT 36

(Possession w1ﬂ1 Intent to. D1stt1bute and Dlsinbutlon of
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Pubhc Housing Property)

The GrandJury Further Charges That:
On or about October 14, 2014, in the Westem District of New York, on and within
1, OOO feet of the real property compnsmg the Gates Housing Pro;ects a housmcr facility
owned by the T.ackawanna Municipal Housmcr Authority, a public housmo authority, the

defendant JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, did knovvmcly, mmtentionally and. -

20




COUNT 37

(Possessmm with Intent to Distribute and Distribution of
Coca.me Base Wnthm 1, 000 Feet of Public mesmg }Property)

The Grand Jury Furﬂmer Chaxges That:

On or about October 24 2014, in the Western Dlstrlct of New Ymk on and within

: ,llé_&fsuﬁstanceg in violation of Title 21, United"f‘Sltétésr'Eo

4T

Al in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).

COUNT 38

(Possession with Intent to Distribute and Distﬁbution of
Cocaine Base Within 1,000 Feet of Public Housing Property)

The Grand Jury Further Charges That:

On or about October 25, '-2014,‘ in the Western District of New York, ‘on’and -within

. +1,000¢ feet of theireal property comprising the Gates Housing Projects, a-housing facility -

owned by the Lackawanna Municipal Housing Authoritv,. a_public hausmg authontythe |

violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(ay. =~ =i

|
1
|
|
|

21



pOSSEss w1t‘v intent to dlstnbute and distribute, “cocaine base a Schedule AT, cont:folled

sUbstancef;‘:iI;r-viOIauon‘ of Tltle'2;1,‘Un1ted,States Code, Section 841(a)_(.1)~. e

Al ii violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 860(a).

~COUNT 39 -
(Possession effCocati‘ne-Base ﬁrith Intent to Dietributej'
The Gﬂrand Jury Furthier Cha:rges That
On or about November 26, 2014 in the Western District of New York the
defendant LAFERALD HINES did knomngly, mten’aona]ly and unlawfu]ly possess W1th

mtent to dlstrlbute cocame base a Schedule II contro]led substance

'm' vmlatlon of Tltle 21, Umted States Code, Sectlons 841(&1)(1) and-

C OUNT 40
(Possession of 28 Gralale or Moxe of Coca:me ’Base w1th Inbeat te.D1>s‘4171’1b’1.1te)
The ‘Gira:nd Jury Further Charges That:

On or about Nm’rember 28, 2014, in tbe Western District of New York, the
defendant, JEFFERY GRAHAM va/ k/a Twenty, did knowingly, intentionally and
unlawfully possess with intent to distribute 28 grams or more of cocaine base, a Schedule II
controlled substance. -

All A0 V1olat10n of T1ﬂe 21, United States Code, Sfections_.-.;841"--(.“'21)(»1?)}\ and

: ‘5‘-841(b)( 1)(B)
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 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION . .« . & .

The Grand Jury Alleges That:. -
- Upon conviction of Count 1 of the Indictment and/or 'up_on‘convictio»n: for: ahy; other

“Offense for which they are respectively charged in Counts 2 through 40: of this Indictment,

the defendants, JEFFERY GRAHAM a/k/a Twenty, REUBEN FEARS a/k/a Jay,
DERRICK PATTERSON a/k/a Dinky a/k/a Post, CRAIG ELDRIDGE, CHARLES
ROSE a/k/a Chuck, LARON THOMPSON, SHARON THOMPSON a/k/a Kintae,
WALDEM.AR PABON, REGINALD ROYAL, JR., SHAVON ROYAL a/k/a Sir,

JAMES SULLIVAN, THEODORE HINES a/k/a Teddy, TARRELL HENDRIX,

THOMAS: HAREEM, TERRY WILLIAMS, EDWARD GREEN, and LAFERALD

HINES, severally and. jointly, sliéHI forfeit to- the United States any and all property

constituting and derived f.r‘o‘in anypmceeds obtairied, directly and: indirectly, as a result of

'»subh_violaﬁOHSE and any and all property used, and intended to be used, in any manner- and ‘

part, to commit and to facilitate the commission of such violations, including, but not

[

limited to:

MONETARY JUDGMENT:

Thé sum of TWO—HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS
(3250,000.00) in United States Currency, to be evidenced by a monetary judgment issued by
‘ this Court in aforesaid amount. Said judgment amount to be heid joint and severally will
accrue at the prevailing rate per annum and sﬂer\\ze as a judgment and lien:against' defendant’s

property, wherever situated until fully satisfied.
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» tates pu1suant to Tltle 21 Umted States Code‘ -

Seétlon 853(p)‘-,v to seek fmfelture of any other property of said defendant up to the value ofﬁ o
- »»-'-~-~~-~~-the~&bove forfeltable"prope;rty: e Sl S 4 . o
- Al pursuant to Sectlons 853(a)(1) and 853(p) of Title 21 “of‘the{]@nite&- States 1
Ot | | |
. DATED: ‘Buffalo, New York, December 5,2014.

. WILLIAM J. HOCHUL, JR.
. ——ne. e e . B i S w—— .- United States A:tt(jme‘y o - .

BY: S/EDWARDH.WHITE . -~
Assistant United States Attorney
United States Attorney’s Office . . -
Western District.of New York .
138 Delawate Avenue '
Buffalo, New York 14202

. 716/843-5862. :

edward.h.white@usdoj.gov

| A TRUE BILL

S/ FOREPERS@N
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